## **EXECUTION VERSION**

# TWELFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICING AGREEMENT

5 JUNE 2020

SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer

and

HOLMES TRUSTEES LIMITED as Mortgages Trustee

and

SANTANDER UK PLC as Seller

and

HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding

and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, ACTING THROUGH ITS LONDON BRANCH as Security Trustee

**ALLEN & OVERY** 

Allen & Overy LLP

0016597-0000387 UKO2: 2000319459.6

# **CONTENTS**

Clause		Page
1.	Definitions, Interpretation and Amendment and Restatement	2
2.	Appointment of Servicer	
3.	The Administration Services	
4.	Mortgages Trustee SVR and Tracker Loans	5
5.	Administration of Mortgages	
6.	No Liability	
7.	New Loans	10
8.	Product Switches and Further Advances	10
9.	Redemption of Mortgages	10
10.	Powers of Attorney	11
11.	Costs and Expenses	11
12.	Information	11
13.	Remuneration	14
14.	Insurances	14
15.	[RESERVED]	14
16.	Buildings Policies	14
17.	Title Deeds	14
18.	Data Protection	15
19.	Covenants of Servicer	18
20.	Services Non-Exclusive	19
21.	Termination	19
22.	Further Assurance	22
23.	Miscellaneous	23
24.	Confidentiality	24
25.	Notices	24
26.	Variation and Waiver	25
27.	No Partnership	25
28.	Assignment	25
29.	Change of Security Trustee	26
30.	New Intercompany Loan Agreements	26
31.	Exclusion of Third Party Rights	26
32.	Counterparts	26
33.	Governing Law	26
Sche	dule	
1.	The Services	
2.	Certificate of Beneficial Ownership	28
Signa	atories	29

THIS TWELFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICING AGREEMENT is made as a deed on 5 June 2020

#### **BETWEEN**:

- (1) **SANTANDER UK PLC** (registered number 2294747), a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales whose registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN in its capacity as servicer of the Loans and the Related Security (the **Servicer**, which expression shall include such other person as may from time to time be appointed as servicer of the Portfolio pursuant to this Agreement);
- (2) **HOLMES TRUSTEES LIMITED** (registered number 3982431), a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales whose registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN (the **Mortgages Trustee**);
- (3) **SANTANDER UK PLC** (registered number 2294747), a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales whose registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN in its capacity as seller of the Loans (the **Seller**);
- (4) **HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED** (registered number 3982428), a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales whose registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN (**Funding** and, together with the Seller, the **Beneficiaries**); and
- (5) THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, ACTING THROUGH ITS LONDON BRANCH, whose registered office is at 40th Floor, One Canada Square, London E14 5AL (the Security Trustee, which expression shall include such company and all other persons for the time being acting as the trustee or trustees under the Funding Deed of Charge).

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) The Servicer carries on the business of, *inter alia*, administering mortgage loans secured on residential properties within the United Kingdom.
- (B) By the Mortgage Sale Agreement, the Seller agreed to assign the Loans and their Related Security comprised in the Initial Portfolio to the Mortgages Trustee. The Mortgages Trustee holds the Initial Portfolio together with any New Portfolio assigned thereafter on trust for the Beneficiaries pursuant to the terms of the Mortgages Trust Deed.
- (C) The Beneficiaries, having day-to-day control of the Trust Property pursuant to the Mortgages Trust Deed, have agreed to exercise such control by appointing the Servicer to perform certain services in relation to the Trust Property on the terms and subject to the conditions contained in this agreement.
- (D) The Servicer is willing to provide administration and management services to the Mortgages Trustee, the Seller, Funding and the Security Trustee on the terms and subject to the conditions contained in this Agreement in relation to, *inter alia*, the Loans and their Related Security assigned to the Mortgages Trustee by the Seller.
- (E) Further to requests from Investors, the Servicer has agreed with the parties hereto to make available to Investors the Monthly Reports (each as defined below) in an electronic format.

1

#### **IT IS HEREBY AGREED** as follows:

## 1. DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT

- 1.1 The Sixteenth Amended and Restated Master Definitions and Construction Schedule signed for the purposes of identification by Allen & Overy LLP and Ashurst LLP on or about the date hereof (as the same may be amended, varied or supplemented from time to time with the consent of the parties hereto) is expressly and specifically incorporated into this Agreement and, accordingly, Clause 3 of the Sixteenth Amended and Restated Master Definitions and Construction Schedule is expressly and specifically incorporated herein and the expressions defined in the Sixteenth Amended and Restated Master Definitions and Construction Schedule (as so amended, varied or supplemented) shall, except where the context otherwise requires and save where otherwise defined herein, have the same meanings in this Agreement, including the Recitals hereto, and this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the interpretation provisions set out in clause 2 of that Sixteenth Amended and Restated Master Definitions and Construction Schedule.
- 1.2 Any reference in this Agreement to any discretion, power, right, duty or obligation on the part of the Mortgages Trustee shall be as exercised by the Mortgages Trustee only as directed by the Beneficiaries but subject in each case to the provisions of clause 15.2 of the Mortgages Trust Deed.
- 1.3 This Agreement further amends and restates the servicing agreement made on 26 July 2000 (which was previously amended and restated on 29 November 2000, 23 May 2001, 7 November 2002, 28 March 2007, 16 July 2009, 12 November 2010, 29 June 2012, 29 August 2013, 18 April 2016, 6 March 2018 and 24 May 2019) between the parties hereto (the **Principal Agreement**). Save as amended or modified by this Agreement, the Principal Agreement shall continue in full force and effect but on the basis that its terms are, as from the date of this Agreement, those set out in this Agreement.

## 2. APPOINTMENT OF SERVICER

- 2.1 Subject to Clause 4.3(d), and until termination pursuant to Clause 21, the Mortgages Trustee, the Seller and Funding (according to their respective estates and interests) each hereby appoints the Servicer as its lawful agent on their respective behalves to exercise their respective rights, powers and discretions, and to perform their respective duties, under and in relation to the Loans and their Related Security. The Servicer in each case hereby accepts such appointment on the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement. The Security Trustee consents to the appointment of the Servicer on the terms of and subject to the conditions of this Agreement.
- 2.2 For the avoidance of doubt and in connection with the rights, powers and discretions conferred under Clause 2.1, during the continuance of its appointment hereunder, the Servicer shall, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Mortgage Conditions, the Mortgage Sale Agreement and the Mortgages Trust Deed, have the full power, authority and right to do or cause to be done any and all things which it reasonably considers necessary, convenient or incidental to the administration of the Loans and their Related Security or the exercise of such rights, powers and discretions, provided however that neither the Mortgages Trustee nor Funding nor their respective directors shall be required or obliged at any time to enter into any transaction or to comply with any directions which the Servicer may give with respect to the operating and financial policies of the Mortgages Trustee or Funding and the Servicer hereby acknowledges that all powers to determine such policies (including the determination of whether or not any particular policy is for the benefit of the Mortgages Trustee or Funding) are, and shall at all times remain, vested, as the case may be, in the Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding (and their respective directors) and none of the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in a manner inconsistent with this proviso.

#### 3. THE ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

#### 3.1 General

- (a) The duty of the Servicer shall be to provide the services set out in this Agreement including Schedule 1 (the Services).
- (b) If and when the Servicer is requested to confirm or state the capacity in which it is administering and servicing the Loans, their Related Security and related matters pursuant to this Agreement by any Borrower or any third party not being a party to this Agreement and to whom the Servicer is obliged by law to disclose such information, the Servicer shall confirm or state that it is acting in its capacity as servicer of the Loans, their Related Security and related matters as agent for and on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries and not on its own behalf.
- (c) Changes to the provisions of the terms under which the Loans and Related Security are administered or managed shall only be undertaken with appropriate agreement and direction from the Beneficiaries.

#### 3.2 Subcontracts

- (a) The Servicer may subcontract or delegate the performance of all or any of its powers and obligations under this Agreement, provided that (but subject to Clause 3.2(b)):
  - (i) the prior written consent of Funding and the Security Trustee to the proposed arrangement (including, if Funding and the Security Trustee consider it necessary, approving any contract which sets out the terms on which such arrangements are to be made) has been obtained and notification has been given to each of the Rating Agencies;
  - (ii) where the arrangements involve the custody or control of any Customer Files and/or Title Deeds relating to the Portfolio for the purpose of performing any delegated Services the sub-contractor or delegate has executed an acknowledgement in form and substance acceptable to Funding and the Security Trustee to the effect that any such Customer Files and/or Title Deeds are and will be held to the order of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries);
  - (iii) where the arrangements involve or may involve the receipt by the sub-contractor or delegate of monies belonging to the Beneficiaries which, in accordance with this Agreement, are to be paid into the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account, the Alternative Accounts and/or the Funding GIC Account, the sub-contractor or delegate has executed a declaration in form and substance acceptable to the Beneficiaries that any such monies held by it or to its order are held on trust for the Beneficiaries and will be paid as soon as reasonably practicable into, as applicable, the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account, the Alternative Accounts and/or the Funding GIC Account in accordance with the terms of the Mortgages Trust Deed;
  - (iv) any such sub-contractor or delegate has executed a written waiver of any Security Interest arising in connection with such delegated Services (to the extent that such Security Interest relates to the Portfolio or any amount referred to in (iii) above); and
  - (v) neither the Mortgages Trustee nor the Beneficiaries shall have any liability for any costs, charges or expenses payable to or incurred by such sub-contractor or delegate or arising from the entering into, the continuance or the termination of any such arrangement.

- (b) The provisos to Clause 3.2(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) shall not apply:
  - (i) to the engagement by the Servicer of:
    - (A) any receiver, solicitor, insurance broker, valuer, surveyor, accountant, estate agent, insolvency practitioner, auctioneer, bailiff, debt counsellor, tracing agent, property management agent, licensed conveyancer or other professional adviser acting as such; or
    - (B) any locksmith, builder or other contractor acting as such in relation to a Property,

in any such case being a person or persons whom the Servicer would be willing to appoint in respect of its own mortgages in connection with the performance by the Servicer of any of its obligations or functions or in connection with the exercise of its powers under this Agreement; or

- (ii) to any delegation to any wholly-owned subsidiary of the Seller from time to time.
- (c) The Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding and the Security Trustee may require the Servicer to assign to the Mortgages Trustee any rights which the Servicer may have against any sub-contractor or delegate arising from the performance of services by such person in association with any matter contemplated by this Agreement and the Servicer acknowledges that such rights assigned to the Mortgages Trustee will be exercised by the Mortgages Trustee as trustee for the Beneficiaries subject to the terms of the Mortgages Trust Deed.
- (d) Notwithstanding any sub-contracting or delegation of the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, the Servicer shall not thereby be released or discharged from any liability hereunder and shall remain responsible for the performance of the obligations of the Servicer under this Agreement, and the performance or non-performance or the manner of performance of any sub-contractor or delegate of any of the Services shall not affect the Servicer's obligations under this Agreement and any breach in the performance of the Services by such sub-contractor or delegate shall, subject to the Servicer being entitled for a period of twenty London Business Days from receipt of notice of the breach to remedy such breach by any sub-contractor or delegate, be treated as a breach of this Agreement by the Servicer.

### 3.3 Notices etc.

Promptly upon request by Funding and the Security Trustee, the Servicer shall procure that any notices permitted to be given by the Mortgages Trustee under clause 7.4 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement are so given by the Servicer on the Mortgages Trustee's behalf.

## 3.4 Liability of Servicer

- (a) The Servicer shall indemnify each of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries on demand on an after tax basis for any loss, liability, claim, expense or damage suffered or incurred by either of them in respect of the negligence or wilful default of the Servicer in carrying out its functions as Servicer under this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents or as a result of a breach by the Servicer of the terms and provisions of this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents in relation to such functions.
- (b) For the avoidance of doubt, the Servicer shall not be liable in respect of any loss, liability, claim, expense or damage suffered or incurred by the Mortgages Trustee and/or the Beneficiaries and/or any other person as a result of the proper performance of the Services by the Servicer save where such loss, liability, claim, expense or damage is suffered or incurred as a result of any negligence or

- wilful default of the Servicer or as a result of a breach by the Servicer of the terms and provisions of this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents in relation to such functions.
- (c) Any indemnification under this Clause 3.4 in respect of loss suffered by the Beneficiaries shall be paid for by reducing the Seller Share of the Trust Property by an amount equal to the relevant loss incurred by the Beneficiaries in accordance with Clause 8.5 of the Mortgages Trust Deed and Schedule 2 to the Cash Management Agreement.

#### 4. MORTGAGES TRUSTEE SVR AND TRACKER LOANS

- 4.1 The Mortgages Trustee and each of the Beneficiaries each hereby grants the Servicer full right, liberty and authority from time to time, in accordance with the relevant Mortgage Terms, to determine and set:
  - the Mortgages Trustee SVR chargeable to Borrowers from time to time. In exercising such right, liberty and authority the Servicer undertakes to each of the other parties to this Agreement that it shall not at any time set or maintain the Mortgages Trustee SVR at a rate which is higher than the then prevailing Santander UK SVR, unless the Servicer is required to do so pursuant to Clause 4.3, and, subject to that requirement, that it shall not change the Mortgages Trustee SVR save for the same reasons as the Seller was entitled, under the Mortgage Conditions, to change the Santander UK SVR prior to the assignment to the Mortgages Trustee of the Loans comprised in the Portfolio and their Related Security. Each of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries shall be bound by the Mortgages Trustee SVR set in accordance with this Agreement; and
  - (b) any variable margin in respect of Tracker Loans. In exercising such right, liberty and authority the Servicer undertakes to each of the other parties to this Agreement that:
    - (i) where the Offer Conditions relating to any Tracker Loan provide that the margin shall be the same as the margin applicable to all other Loans having the same Offer Conditions in relation to the setting of the interest rate, the Servicer shall not at any time set or maintain a margin which is higher than the margin which is then being set by the Seller in relation to any loans carrying the same Offer Conditions relating to interest rate setting which are beneficially owned by the Seller; and
    - (ii) in relation to any other Tracker Loan with a variable margin, the Servicer shall not at any time set or maintain a margin which is higher than the margin which would then be set in accordance with the Seller's Policy (or, if the Seller's Policy is no longer dealing with the setting of such margins, in accordance with the standards of a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender) in relation to that Loan,

unless the Servicer is required to do so pursuant to Clause 4.3, and, subject to that requirement, that it shall not change any variable margin applicable to any Tracker Loan save for the same reasons as the Seller was entitled, under the Offer Conditions, to change such margin prior to the assignment to the Mortgages Trustee of the Loans comprised in the Portfolio and their Related Security. Each of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries shall be bound by any margin set in accordance with this Agreement.

4.2 The Servicer shall take the steps rendered necessary by the relevant Mortgage Terms and applicable law (including any relevant guidance, statements or directions issued by any Regulatory Authority) to bring each change in such rate or rates of interest to the attention of the relevant Borrowers, whether due to a change in the Mortgages Trustee SVR or as a consequence of any provisions of the Mortgage Terms. Any change in the Mortgages Trustee SVR shall be notified to each of the Mortgages Trustee, the Security Trustee and the Beneficiaries as soon as reasonably practicable. All

costs arising in relation to such a notification of a change in such rate or rates of interest shall be borne by the Servicer.

- 4.3 (a) On each Interest Payment Date the Servicer shall determine, having regard to:
  - (i) the income which Funding would expect to receive during the next succeeding Interest Period;
  - (ii) the Mortgages Trustee SVR in respect of the Loans which the Servicer proposes to set under this Clause 4;
  - (iii) the variable margins in respect of Tracker Loans which the Servicer proposes to set under this Clause 4; and
  - (iv) the other resources available to Funding including, without limitation, the Funding Swap Agreements and the First Reserve Fund,

whether Funding would receive an amount of income during that Interest Period which when aggregated with the funds otherwise available to it is less than the amount which is the aggregate of (A) the amount of interest which will be payable in respect of the Term AAA Advances on the Distribution Date falling at the end of such Interest Period and (B) the other senior expenses of Funding which rank in priority thereto or *pari passu* therewith under the Funding Pre-Enforcement Revenue Priority of Payments or, as applicable, the Funding Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments (the amount (if any) by which it is less being the **Interest Rate Shortfall**).

- (b) If the Servicer determines that there will be an Interest Rate Shortfall, it will within one London Business Day give written notice thereof to the Mortgages Trustee, Funding and the Security Trustee of such Interest Rate Shortfall and of the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans which would, in the Servicer's opinion, need to be set in order for no Interest Rate Shortfall to arise, having regard to the date(s) (which shall be specified in the notice) on which such changes to the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans would take effect and at all times acting in accordance with the standards of a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender as regards the competing interests of those Borrowers with Loans in respect of which the rate of interest is determined by reference to an SVR and those Borrowers with Tracker Loans.
- (c) If the Mortgages Trustee, Funding and the Security Trustee notify the Servicer that, having regard to the obligations of Funding, the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans should be increased, the Servicer, as agent for and on behalf of, *inter alia*, the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries, shall take all steps which are necessary, including publishing any notice which is required in accordance with the Mortgage Terms, to effect such change in the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans on the date(s) specified in the notice referred to in Clause 4.3(b).
- (d) Without prejudice to the above sub-paragraphs, at any time prior to the transfer of legal title to the Portfolio (or any part thereof) in accordance with Clause 6 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement, Funding may serve written notice on the Servicer instructing the Servicer to set the Mortgages Trustee SVR, but only with effect from the date on which such transfer of legal title is effected (including publishing any notice which is required in accordance with the Mortgage Conditions to effect such change in the Mortgages Trustee SVR) and provided that an external legal opinion has been obtained by the Mortgages Trustee or the Servicer (in form and substance satisfactory to the Security Trustee (acting reasonably) and capable of

being relied upon by the Security Trustee) confirming that the exercise of such right would not be, or would be unlikely to be viewed by a court as being, unfair for the purposes of the UTCCR or the CRA, to a rate equal to (i) LIBOR for three-month Sterling deposits determined as at the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding such transfer of legal title (or, where LIBOR for three month Sterling is not available, a rate equal to the SONIA Spot Rate calculated as at the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding such transfer of legal title) plus (ii) the Post-Perfection SVR-LIBOR Margin (or, where LIBOR for three month Sterling is not available, the Post-Perfection SVR-SONIA Margin) and thereafter the Servicer shall set the Mortgages Trustee SVR on a quarterly basis as at each Interest Payment Date (including publishing any notice which is required in accordance with the Mortgage Conditions to effect such change in the Mortgages Trustee SVR) at a rate equal to (iii) LIBOR for three-month Sterling deposits determined as at that Interest Payment Date (or, where LIBOR for three month Sterling is not available, a rate equal to the SONIA Spot Rate calculated as at the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding such transfer of legal title) plus (iv) the Post-Perfection SVR-LIBOR Margin (or, where LIBOR for three month Sterling is not available, the Post-Perfection SVR-SONIA Margin).

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (d) of Clause 4.3, a legal opinion from legal counsel confirming that, as at the date on which a transfer of legal title to the Portfolio (or any part thereof) in accordance with clause 6 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement is effected, the Security Trustee may rely on a legal opinion based on any opinion previously delivered by legal counsel to, *inter alios*, the Security Trustee confirming that the exercise of such right would not be, or would be unlikely to be viewed by a court as being, unfair for the purposes of the UTCCR or the CRA, shall satisfy the abovementioned proviso.

(e) The Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding and the Security Trustee may terminate the authority of the Servicer under Clause 4.1 and Clause 4.3 to determine the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans on or after the occurrence of a Termination Event, in which case the Mortgages Trustee shall set the Mortgages Trustee SVR and any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans in accordance with this Clause 4, save that the Seller shall be entitled to make representations to the Mortgages Trustee with respect to any changes in any variable margins in relation to Tracker Loans.

# 5. ADMINISTRATION OF MORTGAGES

# 5.1 Direct Debiting Scheme

- (a) For the purposes of collecting amounts due from Borrowers under the Loans and the Related Security comprised in the Portfolio in accordance with this Agreement the Servicer will, unless otherwise agreed with the Beneficiaries:
  - (i) act, or procure that another person approved by the Beneficiaries (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld) (the **Third Party Collection Agent**) acts, as collection agent for the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries under the Direct Debiting Scheme and remains a member of the Direct Debiting Scheme or any scheme which replaces the Direct Debiting Scheme:
  - (ii) subject to Clauses 5.1(b) and 5.1(c), deliver to the Bankers Automated Clearing System (BACS) or to each Account Bank (as appropriate) such instructions as may be necessary from time to time for the debit of the account of each Borrower in respect of which there is a direct debit mandate (the date of such delivery being the **D.D. Date**) with the Monthly Payment due from such Borrower, and for the amount of such Monthly Payment to be credited to the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account or relevant Alternative Account, as the case

- may be, on the D.D. Date or, if such is not a London Business Day, the following London Business Day;
- (iii) subject to Clauses 5.1(b) and 5.1(c), deliver to each Account Bank or BACS (as appropriate) not later than ten London Business Days before the next succeeding Monthly Payment Day after the D.D. Date, instructions for the debit of the account of each Borrower in respect of which there is a direct debit mandate and the Monthly Payment due and owing from such Borrower on the last D.D. Date remains outstanding to the extent that, on the date of presentation of such instructions, such Monthly Payment has not been received in full by the Servicer on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee;
- (iv) subject to Clauses 5.1(b) and 5.1(c), deliver to each Account Bank or BACS (as appropriate) such other instructions for the debit of the account of each Borrower in respect of which there is a direct debit mandate in accordance with the Direct Debiting Scheme as may be appropriate for the recovery of sums due by such Borrower;
- (v) comply in all material respects with the requirements from time to time of the Direct Debiting Scheme including "The Originator's Guide and Rules to the Direct Debiting Scheme" as amended from time to time; and
- (vi) take all such other steps as are reasonably appropriate, including in particular the preparation and administration of appropriate computer tapes in connection with BACS, to ensure that all monies received from Borrowers during banking hours on any particular day are credited on that day to the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account or relevant Alternative Account, as the case may be.
- (b) The Servicer may agree with a Borrower that the Direct Debiting Scheme shall not apply to Monthly Payments to be made by such Borrower, provided, subject to Clause 5.1(d), that (i) alternative payment arrangements are made which are intended to ensure timely payment of Monthly Payments due from the Borrower to the Mortgages Trustee on behalf of the Beneficiaries, and (ii) the change in arrangements was made at the instigation of the Borrower or by the Servicer in accordance with the procedures which would be adopted by a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender.
- (c) The Servicer may, notwithstanding the proviso to Clause 5.1(b), agree such procedures for the payment by a Borrower of (i) overdue amounts and (ii) amounts payable on redemption of a Mortgage in whole or in part other than through the Direct Debiting Scheme as would be agreed by a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender.
- (d) Where a Borrower permits a direct debit to be made to his bank account, the Servicer will endeavour to procure that such Borrower maintains a valid and effective mandate relating to such direct debit in relation to each Monthly Payment due from that Borrower, provided that in any case where a Borrower will not permit a direct debit to be made to his bank account the Servicer will endeavour to make alternative arrangements acceptable to a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender so that such Borrower nevertheless pays each Monthly Payment on the due date.
- (e) In the event that the BACS system ceases to operate for any reason the Servicer will use reasonable endeavours to make alternative arrangements for the use of such backup systems as are available to each Account Bank.

## 5.2 Administration and Enforcement of Mortgages

(a) The Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries hereby direct the Servicer to administer the Loans comprised in the Portfolio and carry out its specific obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the Seller's Policy.

- (b) The Servicer will, in relation to any default by a Borrower under or in connection with a Loan or a Mortgage comprised in the Portfolio, comply with the Enforcement Procedures or, to the extent that the Enforcement Procedures are not applicable having regard to the nature of the default in question, take such action as is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) and the Beneficiaries, provided that:
  - (i) the Servicer shall only become obliged to comply with the Enforcement Procedures (to the extent applicable) or to take action as aforesaid after it has become aware of the default;
  - (ii) it is acknowledged by the Beneficiaries that mortgage lenders generally exercise discretion in pursuing their respective enforcement procedures and that the Servicer may exercise such discretion as would a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender in applying the Enforcement Procedures to any particular defaulting Borrower or taking action as aforesaid, provided that in exercising such discretion the interest of Funding in the Portfolio is not materially prejudiced; and
  - (iii) in any case where any of the Insurance Policies require exact compliance with certain enforcement procedures the Servicer shall procure the prior written consent of the relevant insurance company for any deviation by it from such enforcement procedures.

#### 5.3 Records

The Servicer shall keep and maintain records in relation to the Portfolio, on a Loan by Loan basis, for the purposes of identifying amounts paid by each Borrower, any amount due from a Borrower and the balance from time to time outstanding on a Borrower's account and such other records as would be kept by a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender. The Servicer will provide such information to the Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding and/or the Security Trustee or to their order at any time upon reasonable notice subject to the Servicer being reasonably capable of providing such information without significant additional cost and subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Laws (as defined in Clause 18.1) and other applicable legislation from time to time and provided that no duty of confidence and no industry code of practice will or may be breached thereby.

#### 5.4 Trust

- (a) If the Servicer in carrying out its functions as Servicer under this Agreement receives (including in its capacity as agent for the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries) any money whatsoever arising from the Loans and their Related Security, which money belongs to the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) and is to be paid to the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account or one of the Alternative Accounts pursuant to this Agreement or any of the other Transaction Documents or otherwise, it will hold such monies on trust for the Mortgages Trustee and shall keep such money separate from all other monies held by the Servicer and shall, as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event within three London Business Days of receipt of the same, pay the monies into the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account or the relevant Alternative Account, as the case may be.
- (b) All other sums received by the Servicer in respect of the Loans and their Related Security shall be held by the Servicer for itself.

#### 6. NO LIABILITY

(a) The Servicer shall have no liability for any obligation of a Borrower under any Loan comprised in the Portfolio or any Related Security and nothing herein shall constitute a guarantee, or similar obligation, by the Servicer of any Loan, Mortgage or any Borrower.

(b) Save as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Servicer shall have no liability for the obligations of the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries under any of the Transaction Documents or otherwise and nothing herein shall constitute a guarantee, or similar obligation, by the Servicer of the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries in respect of any of them.

## 7. **NEW LOANS**

- 7.1 The Portfolio may be augmented from time to time by the assignment to the Mortgages Trustee of a New Portfolio by the Seller.
- 7.2 The assignment of each New Portfolio to the Mortgages Trustee will in all cases be subject to the terms set out in the Mortgage Sale Agreement including, without limitation, the conditions set out in clause 4 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement and the representations and warranties set out in clause 8 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement.

## 8. PRODUCT SWITCHES AND FURTHER ADVANCES

- 8.1 The Servicer shall not accept an application for or, as the case may be, offer a Further Advance or a Product Switch (but excluding an Excluded Further Advance and/or an Excluded Product Switch) without first having received confirmation in writing from the Seller (save where the Seller is the Servicer) that the Seller would, if so offered by the Mortgages Trustee, re-purchase the relevant Loan and its Related Security from the Mortgages Trustee if the conditions for Loans that are the subject of a Product Switch or a Further Advance set out in Clause 4.5 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement are not complied with as of the next Trust Calculation Date immediately following the Product Switch or, as the case may be, Further Advance.
- 8.2 Subject to complying with the terms of Clause 8.1, where the Servicer accepts a Product Switch or a Further Advance, the Servicer shall then notify the Seller and the Mortgages Trustee in writing.
- 8.3 Notwithstanding Clause 8.2, subject to complying with the terms of Clause 8.1, the Servicer may accept requests from Borrowers for Product Switches and Further Advances provided that the Servicer acts in accordance with its then procedure which would be acceptable to a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender.
- 8.4 The Seller is and at all times shall remain solely responsible for funding any application for a Further Advance made by a Borrower and, for the avoidance of doubt, the Servicer shall not be required on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries to advance monies to the Seller or to a Borrower in order to fund such a Further Advance in any circumstances whatsoever.

### 9. REDEMPTION OF MORTGAGES

- 9.1 Upon repayment in full of all sums secured by a Mortgage and/or other Related Security comprised in the Portfolio, the Servicer shall, and is hereby authorised by the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries to, execute a receipt or discharge or relevant Land Registry Form DS1 of the Mortgage and any such other or further instrument or deed of satisfaction regarding such Mortgage and/or the Related Security as it considers to be necessary or advisable and to release the relevant Title Deeds to the person or persons entitled thereto.
- 9.2 The Servicer undertakes that prior to any actual release by it of the relevant Title Deeds it will take reasonable and appropriate steps to satisfy itself that the relevant Title Deeds are being released to the person or persons entitled thereto.

9.3 The Servicer shall procure that if, upon completion of the Enforcement Procedures, an amount in excess of all sums due by the relevant Borrower is recovered or received, the balance, after discharge of all sums due by the Borrower, is paid to the person or persons next entitled thereto.

## 10. POWERS OF ATTORNEY

- 10.1 Each of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries hereby appoints the Servicer as its attorney on its behalf, and in its own or the attorney's name, for the following purposes:
  - (a) executing all documents necessary for the purpose of discharging a Mortgage comprised in the Portfolio which has been repaid in full and any Related Security or for the sale of a Property as Mortgagee;
  - (b) executing all documents necessary for the purpose of releasing a Borrower in accordance with Clause 9;
  - (c) executing all documents and doing all such acts and things which in the reasonable opinion of the Servicer are necessary or desirable for the efficient provision of the Services hereunder, and
  - (d) exercising its rights, powers and discretion under the Mortgages including the right to fix the Mortgages Trustee SVR or any related rights,

provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, these Powers of Attorney shall not authorise the Servicer to sell any of the Loans and/or their Related Security comprised in the Portfolio except as specifically authorised in the Transaction Documents. For the avoidance of doubt, neither the Mortgages Trustee nor Funding shall be liable or responsible for the acts of the Servicer or any failure by the Servicer to act under or in respect of these Powers of Attorney.

The appointments contained in Clause 10.1 shall be irrevocable unless and until following a Termination Event the Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding and/or the Security Trustee serves notice pursuant to Clause 21 to terminate the Servicer's appointment under this Agreement upon which the appointments contained in Clause 10.1 shall be automatically revoked.

## 11. COSTS AND EXPENSES

The Mortgages Trustee (on behalf of the Beneficiaries) will on each Distribution Date reimburse, in accordance with clause 10.2 of the Mortgages Trust Deed, the Servicer for all out-of-pocket costs, expenses and charges (together with an amount equal to any Irrecoverable VAT thereon) properly incurred by the Servicer in the performance of the Services, including any such costs, expenses or charges not reimbursed to the Servicer on any previous Distribution Date, and the Servicer shall supply the Mortgages Trustee with an appropriate VAT invoice issued by the person making the supply.

# 12. INFORMATION

## 12.1 Maintenance of Records

(a) The Servicer shall keep the Customer Files relating to the Portfolio in safe custody and shall take appropriate technical and organisational measures against the unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, personal data. The Servicer shall maintain in an adequate form such records as are necessary to enforce each Mortgage comprised in the Portfolio and, where relevant, any other Related Security. The Servicer shall keep

the Customer Files in relation to the Portfolio in such a way that they can be distinguished from information held by the Servicer for its own behalf as mortgagee or for other third persons.

(b) A duplicate of any computer records held by the Servicer which contains information relating to the Loans and the Related Security shall be lodged by the Servicer on a daily basis with Bletchley Data Centre, Buckingham House, Buckingham Road, Bletchley, Milton Keynes, MK3 5LD and/or (in accordance with operational requirements) with Hayes Information Management at 5 International Avenue, Heston, Middlesex, TW5 9NJ or at such other locations selected by the Servicer, such records to be held to the order of the Mortgages Trustee and to be replaced by a revised duplicate as and when the original records are revised. The Servicer shall keep the Mortgages Trustee informed of the location of the Customer Files and duplicate computer records.

# 12.2 Use of I.T. Systems

- (a) The Servicer represents and warrants that at the date hereof in respect of the software which is used by the Servicer in providing the Services, it shall for the duration of this Agreement:
  - (i) ensure that it has in place all necessary licences and/or consents from the respective licensor or licensors (if any) of such software; and
  - (ii) except in so far as it would breach any other of its legal obligations, grant to any person to whom it may subcontract or delegate the performance of all or any of its powers and obligations under this Agreement and/or to such person as the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries elect as a substitute servicer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement a licence to use any proprietary software together with any updates which may be made thereto from time to time.
- (b) The Servicer shall use reasonable endeavours to maintain in working order the information technology systems used by the Servicer in providing the Services.
- (c) The Servicer shall pass to any person to whom it may subcontract or delegate the performance of all or any of its powers and obligations under this Agreement and/or to such person as the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries elect as a substitute servicer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement the benefit of any warranties in relation to the software insofar as the same are capable of assignment.

## 12.3 Access to Books and Records

Subject to all applicable laws, the Servicer shall permit the Mortgages Trustee and Funding (and their Auditors) and the Security Trustee and any other person nominated by the Beneficiaries (to whom the Servicer has no reasonable objection) upon reasonable notice during normal office hours to have access, or procure that such person or persons are granted access, to all books of record and account (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the Title Deeds and Customer Files) relating to the administration of the Loans and the Related Security comprised in the Portfolio and related matters in accordance with this Agreement.

## **12.4** Information Covenants

(a) The Servicer shall provide the Mortgages Trustee, the Beneficiaries and the Rating Agencies (i) monthly with a report including the information described in clause 12.4(d) below and (ii) quarterly with a report including information to the extent required by and in accordance with Articles 7(1)(a) and 7(1)(e) of the Securitisation Regulation and to comply with the Bank of England's transparency requirements for residential mortgage backed securities, and shall assist the Cash Manager in the

production of quarterly reports substantially in the forms set out in Schedule 3 of the Cash Management Agreement.

- (b) The Servicer shall notify the Rating Agencies in writing of the details of (i) any material amendment to the Transaction Documents, (ii) any proposed material change in the valuation procedures or policies applied or to be applied in relation to Properties by it in connection with its mortgage business (details of which change may be included in a report provided under paragraph (a)) and (iii) any other information relating to its mortgage business and financial condition as the Rating Agencies and any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization (as defined in the U.S. Credit Rating Agency Reform Act of 2006) to the extent required by, and subject to the certification conditions under, Rule 17g-5(a)(3) of the Exchange Act may reasonably request in connection with the ratings of the Rated Master Issuer Notes and any New Rated Notes and other matters contemplated by the Transaction Documents, provided that such request does not adversely interfere with the Servicer's day to day provision of the Services under the other terms of this Agreement.
- (c) The Servicer shall, at the request of Funding and the Security Trustee (where the Servicer is the Seller) and at the request of the Beneficiaries (where the Servicer is no longer the Seller), furnish Funding, the Security Trustee and/or the Beneficiaries (as appropriate) and the Rating Agencies with such other information relating to the business and financial condition of the Servicer and/or any person to whom the Servicer has subcontracted or delegated part of its obligations hereunder, as it may be reasonable for Funding, the Security Trustee and/or the Beneficiaries (as appropriate) to request in connection with the ratings of the Rated Master Issuer Notes and any New Rated Notes and other matters contemplated by the Transaction Documents, provided that Funding, the Security Trustee or the Beneficiaries (as appropriate) shall not make such a request more than once every three months unless, in the belief of Funding, the Security Trustee or the Beneficiaries (as appropriate), an Intercompany Loan Event of Default or a Termination Event shall have occurred and is continuing or may reasonably be expected to occur.
- (d) Subject to any applicable law or contrary instruction from the Beneficiaries, the Servicer shall furnish to each beneficial owner of any Notes (an **Investor**) monthly reports on the Portfolio (the **Monthly Reports**). The Servicer, upon request by an Investor, shall also furnish previous Monthly Reports to such Investor. Each such report shall include information:
  - (i) about any Loans repurchased pursuant to clause 8.11 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement;
  - (ii) (in respect of Notes issued after 1 January 2019) to the extent required to comply with Article 7(1)(a) and 7(1)(e) of Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 (the **Securitisation Regulation**);
  - (iii) (in respect of Notes issued after 1 January 2019) about the risk retained by the Seller and which of the modalities provided for in Article 6(3) of the Securitisation Regulation is being applied; and
  - (iv) to the extent required to comply with the Bank of England's transparency requirements for residential mortgage backed securities.
- (e) For the purposes of Clause 12.4(d), the Servicer is entitled to assume that any person who has delivered to the Servicer a certificate in the form of Schedule 2 is an Investor, and that any other person is not an Investor.
- (f) Subject to any applicable law or contrary instruction from both (and, for the avoidance of doubt, not one only) of the Beneficiaries acting together, the Servicer will make reasonable efforts to make available to Investors Monthly Reports (including previous Monthly Reports) in an electronic format acceptable to the Security Trustee such as "Bloomberg".

#### 13. REMUNERATION

- 13.1 The Mortgages Trustee (on behalf of the Beneficiaries) shall pay to the Servicer for its Services hereunder an administration fee (the **Administration Fee**) (inclusive of any amounts in respect of VAT) which:
  - (a) shall be calculated in relation to each Trust Calculation Period on the basis of the number of days elapsed in the relevant period and a year of 365 days (or, in the case of a Trust Calculation Period ending in a leap year, a 366 day year) at the rate of 0.12% per annum, inclusive of any amounts in respect of VAT, on the aggregate amount of the Funding Share of the Trust Property as at close of business on the preceding Interest Payment Date (or, as applicable, the Initial Closing Date); and
  - (b) shall be paid to the Servicer in arrear on each Distribution Payment Date in the manner contemplated by and in accordance with the provisions of clause 10.2 of the Mortgages Trust Deed.
- 13.2 The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge and agree that no fee shall be payable by the Mortgages Trustee (on behalf of the Beneficiaries) to the Servicer in respect of the services provided under Clause 19.3.

#### 14. INSURANCES

The Servicer will administer the arrangements for insurance to which the Mortgages Trustee is a party or in which either the Seller or the Mortgages Trustee (on behalf of the Beneficiaries) has an interest and which relate to the Loans and the Mortgages comprised in the Portfolio or the business of the Mortgages Trustee. In particular, but without limitation, the Servicer shall promptly notify the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries and the Security Trustee of the existence of any insurance policies to which the Seller is a party or in which it has an interest in addition to those specifically referred to in the definition of "Santander UK plc Policies" in the Master Definitions Schedule.

# 15. [RESERVED]

#### 16. BUILDINGS POLICIES

16.1 If the Servicer becomes aware that a Borrower under a Loan sold by the Seller to the Mortgages Trustee is unable to take out buildings insurance in relation to a Property, the Servicer shall take such action as would a Reasonable, Prudent Mortgage Lender with a view to ensuring that the relevant Property continues to be insured in accordance with the applicable Mortgage Terms.

## 17. TITLE DEEDS

- 17.1 The Servicer shall keep the Title Deeds relating to the Portfolio in safe custody and shall not without the prior written consent of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries part with possession, custody or control of them otherwise than to a sub-contractor or delegate appointed pursuant to Clause 3.2 or to a solicitor, licensed conveyancer or authorised practitioner, subject to the usual undertaking to hold them to the order of the Seller (who in turn will hold them to the order of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries)) or to H.M. Land Registry or, upon redemption of the relevant Loan, to the order of the Borrower.
- 17.2 The Title Deeds relating to the Portfolio shall be kept in such manner so that a computer record is maintained of their location and they are identifiable and retrievable by reference to an account number and pool identifier and identifiable and distinguishable from the title deeds relating to other properties and mortgages in respect of which the Servicer is mortgagee or servicer. In the event of

receipt by the Servicer of notice that the short-term, unsecured, unsubordinated and unguaranteed debt of the Servicer is rated less than A-1 by S&P and P-1 by Moody's and that the Servicer's short term "Issuer Default Rating" is lower than F1 by Fitch, the Servicer shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that the Title Deeds (and the Customer Files) are located separately from the title deeds and customer files of other properties and mortgages which do not form part of the Portfolio.

- 17.3 The Servicer shall provide access or procure that access is provided to the Title Deeds relating to the Portfolio to the Mortgages Trustee, the Beneficiaries and their respective agents at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice. The Servicer acknowledges that the Title Deeds and Customer Files relating to the Portfolio in its possession, custody or control will be held to the order of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) and that it has, in its capacity as Servicer, no beneficial interest therein and the Servicer (in its capacity as such but not in its capacity as a Beneficiary) irrevocably waives any rights or any Security Interest which it might have therein or to which it might at any time be entitled.
- 17.4 The Servicer shall, forthwith on the termination of the appointment of the Servicer pursuant to Clause 21, deliver the Title Deeds and Customer Files to or to the order of the Mortgages Trustee or to such person as the Mortgages Trustee elects as a substitute servicer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement upon written request by the Mortgages Trustee made at any time on or after notice of, or on or after, termination of the appointment of the Servicer pursuant to Clause 21.
- 17.5 The Servicer undertakes that it will use all reasonable efforts to obtain, as soon as practicable and, in any event, in the case of Mortgages which relate to New Loans, on or prior to the first Distribution Date falling after the first anniversary of the date on which the New Loans are purchased from the Seller, details of the title numbers applicable to Properties comprising registered land or land which is the subject of an application for first registration.

## 18. DATA PROTECTION

#### 18.1 In this Clause 18:

**Data Protection Laws** means: (a) from the date of this Agreement up to and including 24 May 2018: (i) Directive 95/46/EC and any applicable national law or regulation that implements that Directive, (ii) the UK Data Protection Act 1998, and (iii) any applicable law in any relevant jurisdiction that applies to the processing of data relating to living persons; and (b) from and including 25 May 2018: (i) Regulation (EU) 2016/679, and (ii) any other applicable law in any relevant jurisdiction that applies to the processing of data relating to living persons, in each case as amended or replaced from time to time;

**Relevant Personal Data** means Personal Data provided or made available to the Servicer for the purpose of providing the Services, performing its obligations or exercising its rights arising under or in connection with this Agreement;

**Personal Data Breach** means any actual or suspected breach of security leading to the accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of or access to Relevant Personal Data transmitted, stored or otherwise processed; and

the terms **Data Controller**, **Data Processor**, **Data Subject**, **Personal Data**, and **processing** shall each have the meanings set out in the Data Protection Laws.

18.2 The Servicer and the Mortgages Trustee each acknowledge that, for the purpose of Data Protection Laws, it is a Data Controller of Relevant Personal Data and that it, independently of and not jointly with the other, determines the purposes for which and the manner in which Relevant Personal Data is, or is to be, processed.

- 18.3 Subject to Clause 18.4, the Servicer and the Mortgages Trustee shall each, and the Servicer shall make all reasonable efforts to ensure that each of its subcontractors shall, abide by the Data Protection Laws in connection with this Agreement.
- 18.4 Clause 18.3 does not apply to a breach of Data Protection Law by the Mortgages Trustee which arises as a result of an act or omission of the Servicer or its subcontractor in the processing of personal data on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee.
- 18.5 Each of the Servicer and the Mortgages Trustee shall:
  - (a) upon becoming aware of any Personal Data Breach:
    - (i) notify the Mortgages Trustee or Servicer (as applicable) as soon as reasonably practicable and provide the Mortgages Trustee or Servicer (as applicable) with a reasonable description of the Personal Data Breach (including the facts surrounding it and the type of data that was the subject of the Personal Data Breach) promptly upon such information becoming available;
    - (ii) work together with the Mortgages Trustee or Servicer (as applicable), acting reasonably and in good faith, to mitigate any adverse effects of any such breach on the Mortgages Trustee's or Servicer's business (as applicable) and the affected Data Subjects;
    - (iii) not release or publish any filing, communication, notice, press release or report concerning the breach without first consulting the other party with regards to the content of that notice and giving due regard to the Mortgages Trustee's or Servicer's reasonable comments (as applicable), save that it may disclose a Personal Data Breach to the extent required by applicable law; and
    - (iv) bear all its own costs and expenses incurred as a result of any actions and steps undertaken in accordance with this Clause 18.5(a);
  - (b) to the extent permitted by law, if it receives any complaint, notice or communication from a supervisory authority which relates directly or indirectly to the Mortgages Trustee's or the Servicer's (as relevant): (1) processing of the Relevant Personal Data; or (2) an actual or potential failure by either the Mortgages Trustee or the Servicer to comply with Data Protection Laws, promptly forward the complaint, notice or communication to the other and provide the other with reasonable co-operation and assistance in relation to the same;
  - (c) if, in relation to Relevant Personal Data, a Data Subject makes a written request to the Mortgages Trustee or the Servicer to exercise his or her rights of access, rectification or erasure, to restrict or object to processing of Relevant Personal Data or to data portability: (1) forward the request to the other promptly and in any event within five Business Days of the date of receipt of the request; and (2) respond promptly to such request, acting on behalf of the other where necessary, and meet applicable deadlines under the Data Protection Laws; and
  - (d) taking into account the nature, scope, context and purpose of processing, implement and maintain appropriate technical and organisational security measures against accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of or access to Relevant Personal Data.

- 18.6 Notwithstanding Clause 18.2, the Servicer shall provide fair processing information, on behalf of both the Servicer and the Mortgages Trustee, to all Data Subjects to whom Relevant Personal Data relates.
- 18.7 Without prejudice to Clause 18.2, to the extent the Servicer acts as a Data Processor for the Mortgages Trustee in relation to Loans in the Portfolio, the Servicer shall:
  - (a) process Relevant Personal Data only on the documented instructions of the Mortgages Trustee and, in particular, not process Relevant Personal Data other than for the purposes of administering and/or managing those Loans in the Portfolio;
  - (b) inform the Mortgages Trustee if, in the Servicer's opinion, the Mortgages Trustee's instructions would breach Data Protection Laws:
  - (c) comply with its obligations under Clause 18.5(d);
  - (d) ensure that any copies of Relevant Personal Data in the possession or under the control of the Servicer are destroyed or returned to the Mortgages Trustee (at the Mortgages Trustee's option) when they are no longer required for the purposes of administering and/or managing those Loans in the Portfolio, provided that the Servicer shall be entitled to retain copies of any Relevant Personal Data if required to do so by EU or UK law;
  - (e) not transfer Relevant Personal Data out of the European Economic Area, except:
    - (i) on the written instructions, or with the written consent, of the Mortgages Trustee; or
    - (ii) in circumstances where the transfer does not amount to a breach of a Data Protection Law;
  - (f) before disclosing any Relevant Personal Data to any persons who need to have access to Relevant Personal Data in order to carry out their roles in the administration and/or management of those Loans in the Portfolio, ensure that the relevant personnel have committed themselves to confidentiality or are under an appropriate statutory obligation of confidentiality;
  - (g) assist the Mortgages Trustee with undertaking an assessment of the impact of processing of Relevant Personal Data, and with any consultations with a supervisory authority, if and to the extent an assessment or consultation is required to be carried out under Data Protection Laws:
  - (h) without prejudice to Clause 18.5(a), notify the Mortgages Trustee without undue delay after becoming aware of a Personal Data Breach and, upon the Mortgages Trustee's reasonable written request, provide the Mortgages Trustee with all co-operation and assistance reasonably requested by the Mortgages Trustee to enable the Mortgages Trustee to notify the Personal Data Breach to the relevant supervisory authority and relevant Data Subject(s) (as applicable);
  - (i) without prejudice to the remainder of this Clause 18.7, give the Mortgages Trustee such cooperation, assistance and information as it may reasonably request and the Servicer or the relevant subcontractor may reasonably be able to provide to enable the Mortgages Trustee to comply with its obligations under the Data Protection Laws (including in connection with any civil, administrative or criminal proceedings against the Mortgages Trustee) and cooperate with the Information Commissioner and other competent data protection and privacy authorities in relation to Relevant Personal Data;

- (j) implement appropriate technical and organisational measures for the fulfilment of the Mortgages Trustee's obligation to respond to requests by Data Subjects to exercise their rights under the Data Protection Laws;
- (k) in the case of processing of Relevant Personal Data by a subcontractor of the Servicer (such processing being, subject to the other provisions of this Clause 18, generally authorised):
  - (i) before disclosing Relevant Personal Data to a subcontractor, ensure that the subcontractor's processing is carried out under a written contract imposing on the subcontractor the same obligations as are imposed on the Servicer in this Clause 18.7, in particular and where required by Data Protection Laws providing sufficient guarantees to implement appropriate technical and organisational security measures in such a manner that the processing will meet the requirements of the Data Protection Laws; and
  - (ii) ensure that the subcontractor performs and observes those obligations; and
- (l) upon the Mortgages Trustee's reasonable written request, make available to the Mortgages Trustee all information necessary to demonstrate compliance with its obligations under this Clause 18.7 and permit the Mortgages Trustee or a representative of the Mortgages Trustee to inspect and audit the Servicer's processing activities (and/or those of its agents, subsidiaries and subcontractors) in accordance with Clause 12.3 and comply with all reasonable requests or directions of the Mortgages Trustee regarding this Clause 18.7.
- 18.8 To the extent the Servicer processes Relevant Personal Data as a Data Processor on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee, the Mortgages Trustee:
  - (a) instructs the Servicer to take such steps in the processing of Relevant Personal Data on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee as are reasonably necessary for the administration and/or management of those Loans in the Portfolio; and
  - (b) irrevocably authorises the Servicer to provide equivalent instructions to its subcontractors on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee.
- 18.9 The Servicer represents that as at the date hereof the Servicer has and hereafter it will maintain on behalf of itself and on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) all appropriate registrations, licences and authorities (if any) required under the applicable Data Protection Laws to enable each of them to perform their respective obligations under this Agreement.

## 19. COVENANTS OF SERVICER

- 19.1 The Servicer hereby covenants with and undertakes to each of the Mortgages Trustee, the Beneficiaries and the Security Trustee that without prejudice to any of its specific obligations hereunder it will:
  - (a) administer the Loans and their Related Security as if the same had not been assigned to the Mortgages Trustee but had remained on the books of the Seller;
  - (b) provide the Services in such manner and with the same level of skill, care and diligence as would a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender;

- (c) comply with any proper directions, orders and instructions which the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries may from time to time give to it in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement;
- (d) keep in force all licences, approvals, authorisations and consents which may be necessary in connection with the performance of the Services and prepare and submit all necessary applications and requests for any further approval, authorisation, consent or licence required in connection with the performance of the Services and in particular any necessary registrations under the Data Protection Laws (as defined in Clause 18.1);
- (e) save as otherwise agreed with the Mortgages Trustee and each of the Beneficiaries, provide free of charge to the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries, office space, facilities, equipment and staff sufficient to fulfil the obligations of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries under this Agreement;
- (f) not knowingly fail to comply with any legal requirements in the performance of the Services;
- (g) ensure that at all times the Loans (including the Flexible Loans) comply with the terms of the Consumer Credit Act 1974 (to the extent that such Loans are regulated by that Act);
- (h) make all payments required to be made by it pursuant to this Agreement on the due date for payment thereof in sterling for value on such day without set-off (including, without limitation, in respect of any fees owed to it) or counterclaim;
- (i) not without the prior written consent of the Mortgages Trustee amend or terminate any of the Transaction Documents save in accordance with their terms; and
- (j) forthwith upon becoming aware of any event which may reasonably give rise to an obligation of the Seller to repurchase any Loan pursuant to clause 8 of the Mortgage Sale Agreement, notify the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries in writing of such event.
- 19.2 The covenants of the Servicer in Clause 19.1 shall remain in force until this Agreement is terminated but without prejudice to any right or remedy of the Mortgages Trustee and/or the Seller and/or Funding arising from breach of any such covenant prior to the date of termination of this Agreement.
- 19.3 The Servicer agrees to co-operate fully and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or desirable, and to provide all information in its possession necessary for any reporting obligation to enable the Issuer, Funding 1 and the Mortgages Trustee to comply with their obligations to assist the Seller (as originator) to comply with the requirements of Article 7 of the Securitisation Regulation.

#### 20. SERVICES NON-EXCLUSIVE

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Servicer from rendering or performing services similar to those provided for in this Agreement to or for itself or other persons, firms or companies or from carrying on business similar to or in competition with the business of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries.

#### 21. TERMINATION

- 21.1 If any of the following events (**Termination Events**) shall occur:
  - (a) default is made by the Servicer in the payment on the due date of any payment due and payable by it under this Agreement and such default continues unremedied for a period of

three London Business Days after the earlier of the Servicer becoming aware of such default and receipt by the Servicer of written notice from Funding, the Security Trustee and the Mortgages Trustee requiring the same to be remedied;

- (b) default is made by the Servicer in the performance or observance of any of its other covenants and obligations under this Agreement, which in the reasonable opinion of Funding and the Security Trustee is materially prejudicial to the interests of the Issuers under the Intercompany Loans and/or the interests of the holders of the Master Issuer Notes and any New Notes from time to time and such default continues unremedied for a period of twenty days after the earlier of the Servicer becoming aware of such default and receipt by the Servicer of written notice from Funding and the Security Trustee requiring the same to be remedied, provided however that where the relevant default occurs as a result of a default by any person to whom the Servicer has subcontracted or delegated part of its obligations hereunder, such default shall not constitute a Termination Event if, within such period of ten London Business Days, the Servicer terminates the relevant subcontracting or delegation arrangements and takes such steps as Funding and the Security Trustee may specify to remedy such default or to indemnify the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries against the consequences of such default;
- (c) an order is made or an effective resolution passed for winding up the Servicer;
- (d) the Servicer ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business or a substantial part of its business or stops payment or threatens to stop payment of its debts or the Servicer is deemed unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123(1)(a), (b), (c) or (d) of the Insolvency Act 1986 (as that section may be amended) or becomes unable to pay its debts as they fall due or the value of its assets falls to less than the amount of its liabilities (taking into account for both these purposes its contingent and prospective liabilities) or otherwise becomes insolvent;
- (e) proceedings are initiated against the Servicer under any applicable liquidation, administration, insolvency, composition, reorganisation (other than a reorganisation where the Servicer is solvent) or other similar laws, save where such proceedings are being contested in good faith by the Servicer, or an administrative or other receiver, administrator or other similar official is appointed in relation to the Servicer or in relation to the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking or assets of the Servicer, or a distress, execution or diligence or other process is levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking or assets of the Servicer and in any of the foregoing cases it is not discharged within fifteen London Business Days; or if the Servicer initiates or consents to judicial proceedings relating to itself under any applicable liquidation, administration, insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws or makes a conveyance or assignment for the benefit of its creditors generally;
- (f) neither the Servicer nor a directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Servicer is servicing the Portfolio pursuant to this Agreement; or
- (g) the Servicer has not terminated the subcontracting and delegation within ten London Business Days if required by Clause 21.6,

then the Mortgages Trustee and/or Funding and/or the Security Trustee may at once or at any time thereafter while such default continues by notice in writing to the Servicer terminate its appointment as Servicer under this Agreement with effect from a date (not earlier than the date of the notice) specified in the notice.

- 21.2 The appointment of the Servicer under this Agreement may be terminated upon the expiry of not less than 12 months' notice of termination given by the Servicer to the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries provided that:
  - (a) the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries consent in writing to such termination;
  - (b) a substitute servicer shall be appointed, such appointment to be effective not later than the date of such termination;
  - such substitute servicer has experience of administering mortgages of residential property in the United Kingdom and is approved by the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries;
  - (d) such substitute servicer enters into an agreement substantially on the same terms as the relevant provisions of this Agreement and the Servicer shall not be released from its obligations under the relevant provisions of this Agreement until such substitute servicer has entered into such new agreement; and
  - (e) the then current ratings of the Rated Master Issuer Notes or any New Rated Notes are not adversely affected as a result thereof, unless otherwise agreed by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the relevant Trust Deed) of the holders of the relevant class of Rated Notes.
- 21.3 On and after termination of the appointment of the Servicer under this Agreement pursuant to this Clause 21, all authority and power of the Servicer under this Agreement shall be terminated and be of no further effect and the Servicer shall not thereafter hold itself out in any way as the agent of the Mortgages Trustee and/or the Beneficiaries pursuant to this Agreement.
- 21.4 Upon termination of the appointment of the Servicer under this Agreement pursuant to this Clause 21, the Servicer shall:
  - (a) forthwith deliver (and in the meantime hold on trust for, and to the order of, the Mortgages Trustee) to the Mortgages Trustee or as it shall direct the Customer Files, the Title Deeds, all books of account, papers, records, registers, correspondence and documents in its possession or under its control relating to the affairs of or belonging to the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) and the Mortgages in the Portfolio and any other Related Security, (if practicable, on the date of receipt) any monies then held by the Servicer on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee and any other assets of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries;
  - (b) take such further action as the Mortgages Trustee, Funding and the Security Trustee may reasonably direct at the expense of the Beneficiaries (including in relation to the appointment of a substitute servicer) provided that the Mortgages Trustee shall not be required to take or direct to be taken such further action unless it has been indemnified to its satisfaction;
  - (c) provide all relevant information contained on computer records in the form of CD-ROM(s) (or other portable electronic data storage medium), together with details of the layout of the files recorded on such CD-ROM(s) (or other portable electronic data storage medium);
  - (d) co-operate and consult with and assist the Mortgages Trustee, Funding, the Security Trustee and their respective nominees (which shall, for the avoidance of doubt, include any new servicer appointed by any of them) for the purposes of explaining the file layouts and the format of the CD-ROM(s) (or other portable electronic data storage medium) generally containing such computer records on the computer system of the Mortgages Trustee, Funding, the Security Trustee or such nominees, as the case may be; and

- (e) permit the Mortgages Trustee, Funding and the Security Trustee to have access at reasonable times to the Santander UK plc Policies.
- 21.5 The Servicer shall deliver to the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event within five days of becoming aware thereof a notice of any Termination Event or any event which with the giving of notice or lapse of time or certification would constitute the same.
- 21.6 If any of the events set out in Clauses 21.1(c), (d) and (e) occur in relation to any person to whom the Servicer has subcontracted or delegated part of its obligations hereunder, the Servicer shall notify the Security Trustee and the Servicer shall within ten London Business Days of such an event occurring, terminate the relevant subcontracting or delegation arrangements.
- 21.7 Termination of this Agreement or the appointment of the Servicer under this Agreement shall be without prejudice to the liabilities of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries to the Servicer or vice versa incurred before the date of such termination. The Servicer shall have no right of set-off or any lien in respect of such amounts against amounts held by it on behalf of the Mortgages Trustee.
- 21.8 This Agreement shall terminate at such time as the Mortgages Trustee has no further interest in any of the Loans or the Mortgages which have been comprised in the Portfolio.
- 21.9 On termination of the appointment of the Servicer under the provisions of this Clause 21, the Servicer shall be entitled to receive all fees and other monies accrued up to the date of termination but shall not be entitled to any other or further compensation. Such monies so receivable by the Servicer shall be paid by the Mortgages Trustee on the dates on which they would otherwise have fallen due hereunder. For the avoidance of doubt, such termination shall not affect the Servicer's rights to receive payment of all amounts (if any) due to it from the Mortgages Trustee other than under this Agreement.
- 21.10 Prior to termination of this Agreement, the Servicer, the Seller, the Security Trustee, the Mortgages Trustee and Funding shall co-operate to obtain the agreement of the Borrowers to a new bank mandate permitting the Mortgages Trustee to operate the Direct Debiting Scheme.
- 21.11 Any provision of this Agreement which is stated to continue after termination of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding termination.

## 22. FURTHER ASSURANCE

- 22.1 The parties hereto agree that they will co-operate fully to do all such further acts and things and execute any further documents as may be necessary or desirable to give full effect to the arrangements contemplated by this Agreement.
- Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 22.1, the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries shall upon request by the Servicer forthwith give to the Servicer such further powers of attorney or other written authorisations, mandates or instruments as are necessary to enable the Servicer to perform the Services.
- 22.3 In the event that there is any change in the identity of the Mortgages Trustee or an additional Mortgages Trustee is appointed, the remaining Mortgages Trustee and/or the retiring Mortgages Trustee, as the case may be, shall execute such documents with any other parties to this Agreement and take such actions as such new Mortgages Trustee may reasonably require for the purposes of vesting in such new Mortgages Trustee the rights of the Mortgages Trustee under this Agreement and releasing the retiring Mortgages Trustee from further obligations thereunder and while any of the Rated Notes of any Issuer remain outstanding shall give notice thereof to the Rating Agencies.

22.4 Nothing herein contained shall impose any obligation or liability on the Mortgages Trustee to assume or perform any of the obligations of the Servicer hereunder or render it liable for any breach thereof.

## 23. MISCELLANEOUS

23.1 Subject to Clause 23.2, in the event that the funds available to the Mortgages Trustee on any Interest Payment Date are not sufficient to satisfy in full the aggregate amount payable to the Servicer by the Mortgages Trustee on such Interest Payment Date then the amount payable to the Servicer on such Interest Payment Date shall be reduced by the amount of the shortfall and such shortfall shall (subject always to the provisions of this Clause 23) be payable on the immediately succeeding Interest Payment Date.

#### 23.2 In the event that:

- (a) after redemption in full of the Intercompany Loans; or
- (b) after service of an Intercompany Loan Enforcement Notice and payment of all other prior claims,

the remaining sums available to the Mortgages Trustee or remaining proceeds of enforcement are insufficient to satisfy in full the outstanding fees or other claims of the Servicer, such fees shall be reduced by the amount of the deficiency.

- 23.3 Each of the Seller and the Servicer agrees that it will not:
  - (a) set off or purport to set off any amount which the Mortgages Trustee, Funding or each Issuer is or will become obliged to pay to it under any of the Transaction Documents against any amount from time to time standing to the credit of or to be credited to the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account, any Alternative Account, the Funding GIC Account, the Funding Transaction Account or any Issuer Account or in any other account prior to transfer to the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account, the relevant Alternative Account, the Funding GIC Account, the Funding Transaction Account or the relevant Issuer Account, as appropriate; or
  - (b) make or exercise any claims or demands, any rights of counterclaim or any other equities against or withhold payment of any and all sums of money which may at any time and from time to time be standing to the credit of the Mortgages Trustee GIC Account, the relevant Alternative Account, the Funding GIC Account, the Funding Transaction Account or the relevant Issuer Account.
- 23.4 The Servicer agrees that for so long as any Master Issuer Notes and any New Notes are outstanding it will not petition nor commence proceedings for the administration or winding up of the Mortgages Trustee or Funding or any Issuer nor participate in any exparte proceedings with regard thereto.
- In relation to all sums due and payable by the Mortgages Trustee to the Servicer, the Servicer agrees that it shall have recourse only to sums paid to or received by (or on behalf of) the Mortgages Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the Mortgage Sale Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and in relation to the Mortgages.
- 23.6 For the avoidance of doubt, neither Beneficiary shall be liable to pay any amounts due under Clauses 11 and 13 without prejudice to the obligations of the Mortgages Trustee in respect of such amounts.

23.7 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, all obligations to, and rights of, Funding under or in connection with this Agreement (other than its obligations under Clause 24) shall automatically terminate upon the discharge in full of all amounts owing by it under any Intercompany Loan Agreement, provided that this shall be without prejudice to any claims in respect of such obligations and rights arising on or prior to such date.

#### 24. CONFIDENTIALITY

During the continuance of this Agreement or after its termination, each of the Mortgages Trustee and the Beneficiaries shall use its best endeavours not to disclose to any person, firm or company whatsoever any information relating to the business, finances or other matters of a confidential nature of any other party hereto of which it may exclusively by virtue of being party to the Transaction Documents have become possessed and shall use all reasonable endeavours to prevent any such disclosure as aforesaid, provided however that the provisions of this Clause 24 shall not apply:

- (a) to any information already known to the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries otherwise than as a result of entering into any of the Transaction Documents;
- (b) to any information subsequently received by the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries which it would otherwise be free to disclose;
- (c) to any information which is or becomes public knowledge otherwise than as a result of the conduct of the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries;
- (d) to any extent that the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries is required to disclose the same pursuant to any law or order of any court or pursuant to any direction, request or requirement (whether or not having the force of law) of any central bank or any governmental or other authority (including, without limitation, any official bank examiners or regulators);
- (e) to the extent that the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries needs to disclose the same for determining the existence of, or declaring, an Intercompany Loan Event of Default or a Termination Event, the protection or enforcement of any of its rights under any of the Transaction Documents or in connection herewith or therewith or for the purpose of discharging, in such manner as it thinks fit, its duties under or in connection with such agreements in each case to such persons as require to be informed of such information for such purposes; or
- (f) in relation to any information disclosed to the professional advisers of the Mortgages Trustee or the Beneficiaries or (in connection with the review of current ratings of the Rated Master Issuer Notes or any New Rated Notes or with a prospective rating of any debt to be issued by an Issuer) to any credit rating agency and any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization (as defined in the U.S. Credit Rating Agency Reform Act of 2006) to the extent required by, and subject to the certification conditions under, Rule 17g-5(a)(3) of the Exchange Act or any prospective new Servicer or Mortgages Trustee.

## 25. NOTICES

Any notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement to any of the parties hereto shall be sufficiently served if sent by prepaid first class post, by hand or by email and shall be deemed to be given (in the case of email) when despatched if despatched before 17.00 hours on a London Business Day or on the next London Business Day if despatched thereafter, (where delivered by hand) on the day of delivery if delivered before 17.00 hours on a London Business Day or on the next London Business

Day if delivered thereafter or (in the case of first class post) when it would be received in the ordinary course of the post and shall be sent:

- (a) in the case of the Servicer, to Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regents Place, London NW1 3AN (with a copy via email to: MTF@santander.co.uk and treasurylegal@santander.co.uk) for the attention of Medium Term Funding and Treasury Legal;
- (b) in the case of the Mortgages Trustee, to Holmes Trustees Limited, c/o Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN (with a copy via email to: MTF@santander.co.uk and treasurylegal@santander.co.uk) for the attention of Medium Term Funding and Treasury Legal;
- (c) in the case of the Seller, to Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regents Place, London NW1 3AN (with a copy via email to: MTF@santander.co.uk and treasurylegal@santander.co.uk) for the attention of Medium Term Funding and Treasury Legal;
- (d) in the case of Funding, to Holmes Funding Limited, c/o Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN (with a copy via email to: MTF@santander.co.uk and treasurylegal@santander.co.uk) for the attention of Medium Term Funding and Treasury Legal; and
- (e) in the case of the Security Trustee, to The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London Branch, 40th Floor, One Canada Square, London E14 5AL for the attention of the Trustee Administration Manager (with a copy via email to: corpsov2@bnymellon.com),

or to such other address or email or for the attention of such other person or entity as may from time to time be notified by any party to the others by written notice in accordance with the provisions of this Clause 25. All notices served under this Agreement shall be simultaneously copied to the Security Trustee by the person serving the same.

## 26. VARIATION AND WAIVER

No variation or waiver of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by (or by some person duly authorised by) each of the parties. No single or partial exercise of, or failure or delay in exercising, any right under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver or preclude any other or further exercise of that or any other right.

## 27. NO PARTNERSHIP

It is hereby acknowledged and agreed by the parties that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as giving rise to any partnership between any of the parties.

## 28. ASSIGNMENT

- 28.1 The Mortgages Trustee may not assign or transfer any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of each of the Beneficiaries.
- 28.2 The Servicer may not assign or transfer any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Mortgages Trustee (as trustee for the Beneficiaries) and each of the Beneficiaries.
- 28.3 The Servicer acknowledges that Funding has assigned its rights under this Agreement to the Security Trustee pursuant to the Funding Deed of Charge and acknowledges that pursuant to the terms of the

Funding Deed of Charge, Funding has, *inter alios*, authorised the Security Trustee, prior to the Funding Security becoming enforceable, to exercise, or refrain from exercising, all rights, powers, authorities, discretions and remedies under or in respect of the Transaction Documents, including this Agreement, in such manner as in its absolute discretion it shall think fit.

## 29. CHANGE OF SECURITY TRUSTEE

- 29.1 If there is any change in the identity of the Security Trustee in accordance with the Funding Deed of Charge, the Servicer, the Seller, Funding and the Mortgages Trustee shall execute such documents and take such action as the successor Security Trustee and the outgoing Security Trustee may reasonably require for the purpose of vesting in the successor Security Trustee the rights and obligations of the outgoing Security Trustee under this Agreement and releasing the outgoing Security Trustee from its future obligations under this Agreement.
- 29.2 It is hereby acknowledged and agreed that by its execution of this Agreement the Security Trustee shall not assume or have any of the obligations or liabilities of the Servicer, the Seller, Funding or the Mortgages Trustee under this Agreement.

### 30. NEW INTERCOMPANY LOAN AGREEMENTS

If Funding enters into a New Intercompany Loan Agreement, then the Servicer, the Seller, Funding, the Security Trustee and the Mortgages Trustee shall execute such documents and take such action as may be necessary or required by the Rating Agencies for the purpose of including the New Issuer, any New Funding Swap Provider, any New Start-up Loan Provider and any other person who has executed an Accession Undertaking or any New Intercompany Loan Agreement in the Transaction Documents.

## 31. EXCLUSION OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

The parties to this Agreement do not intend that any term of this Agreement should be enforced, by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, by any person who is not a party to this Agreement.

#### 32. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts (manually or by facsimile transmission or electronic transmission) and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

#### 33. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement (and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it) shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as a deed the day and year first before written.

#### **SCHEDULE 1**

#### THE SERVICES

In addition to the Services set out in the body of the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer shall:

- (b) keep records and books of account for the Mortgages Trustee in relation to the Loans comprised in the Portfolio:
- (c) keep sufficient records for all Taxation purposes (including, without limitation, VAT);
- (d) notify relevant Borrowers of any change in their Monthly Payments;
- (e) assist the auditors of the Mortgages Trustee and provide information to them upon reasonable request;
- (f) provide a redemption statement upon the request of a Borrower or the Borrower's solicitor or licensed conveyancer;
- (g) notify relevant Borrowers of any other matter or thing which the applicable Mortgage Conditions or Offer Conditions require them to be notified of in the manner and at the time required by the relevant Mortgage Terms;
- (h) subject to the provisions of this Agreement (including without limitation Clause 5.2) take all reasonable steps to recover all sums due to the Mortgages Trustee including without limitation by the institution of proceedings and/or the enforcement of any Loan comprised in the Portfolio or any New Portfolio or any Related Security;
- (i) take all other action and do all other things which it would be reasonable to expect a reasonable, prudent mortgage lender to do in administering its mortgages;
- (j) act as collection agent for the Mortgages Trustee under the Direct Debiting Scheme in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; and
- (k) assist the Cash Manager in the preparation of a quarterly report substantially in the form set out in the Cash Management Agreement.

# **SCHEDULE 2**

# CERTIFICATE OF BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

(the <b>Investor</b> ), hereby certifies that it is the beneficial owner of notes issued by Holmes Master Issuer PLC (the <b>Issuer</b> ).
Unless otherwise defined herein, terms used herein shall have the same meaning as used in the Twelfth Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement dated 5 June 2020. Pursuant to Clause 13.4(d) of the Twelfth Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement, the Investor requests that the Servicer deliver to it by e-mail the Monthly Reports (including all previous Monthly Reports).
The Investor shall promptly notify the Servicer if it ceases to be a beneficial owner of the notes.
Upon ceasing to be a beneficial owner of the notes, the Investor acknowledges that the Servicer shall have no further obligation to deliver Monthly Reports to it.
The notice details for the Servicer and the Investor are as follows:
Servicer
Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regents Place, London NW1 3AN (with a copy via email to: MTF@santander.co.uk and treasurylegal@santander.co.uk) for the attention of Medium Term Funding and Treasury Legal
Investor
E-mail address: [ ]
Signed by [ ] as authorised representative on behalf of the Investor.
Dated [ ]

## **SIGNATORIES**

Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES TRUSTEES LIMITED as Mortgages Truste acting by one director  Director: in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding acting by one director in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:	<b>EXECUTED</b> as a <b>DEED</b> by <b>SANTANDER UK PLC</b> as Seller acting by its attorney in the presence of:	) ) )
HOLMES TRUSTEES LIMITED  as Mortgages Trustee acting by one director  Director:  in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by SOUTH OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROP	Name:	
in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding acting by one director in the presence of:  Witness: Name:  Witness: Name:	HOLMES TRUSTEES LIMITED as Mortgages Trustee	) ) )
Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding acting by one director in the presence of:  Witness: Name:		)
SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the presence of:  Witness: Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding acting by one director  in the presence of:  Witness: Name:	Name:	
Name: Address:  EXECUTED as a DEED by HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding acting by one director  in the presence of:  Witness: Name:	SANTANDER UK PLC as Servicer acting by its attorney in the	
HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED as Funding ) acting by one director ) in the presence of: Witness: Name:	Name:	
Witness: Name:	<b>HOLMES FUNDING LIMITED</b> as Funding	) ) )
Name:	in the presence of:	
	Name:	

05 June 2020 | 09:59:42 BST

<b>EXECUTED</b> as a <b>DEED</b> by	)	Digitally signed
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,	)	by
ACTING THROUGH ITS LONDON	)	Date: 2020.06.04
BRANCH	)	17:53:42 +01'00'
acting by its duly authorised signatory:	)	17.33.12 10100